Public Document Pack

Planning Agenda
Wednesday, 16 October 2019 at 6.00 pm
Council Chamber, Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place, Hastings, TN34 3UY.
Please enter the building via the Tourist Information Centre entrance.
For further information, please contact Democratic Services on 01424 451484 or email:
democraticservices@hastings.gov.uk
Page No.
1.

Apologies for Absence

2.

Declarations of Interest

3.

Minutes of previous meeting

4.

Notification of any additional urgent items

5.

Planning applications attracting a petition
(a) 9 Wesley Salmon Close (HS/FA/19/00459)
(M Botting, Development Control Officer)

6.

7.

1 - 10

11 - 20

Other Planning Applications
(a) 25 West Hill Road (HS/FA/19/00431)
(L Fletcher, Planning Officer)

21 - 32

(b) 52A Burry Road (HS/FA/19/00357)
(E Meppem, Senior Planning Officer)

33 - 48

Planning Appeals and Delegated Decisions

Corporate & Democratic Services
www.hastings.gov.uk/meetings

49 - 50

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item
3 Document Pack
Public
PLANNING

11 SEPTEMBER 2019

Present: Councillors Roberts (Chair), Cox (Vice-Chair), Beaver, Bishop,
Davies, Edwards, Marlow-Eastwood, O'Callaghan, Scott and Webb

149.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

None received.
150.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor
Cllr Beaver
Cllr Webb
Cllr Scott
Cllr Edwards
Cllr Beaver
Cllr Beaver
Cllr Webb
Cllr Marlow – Eastwood
Cllr Bishop

151.

Item
All matters related to
highways
All matters related to
highways
All matters related to
Highways
5a - 1A Park Wood Road,
Hastings
5a - 1A Park Wood Road,
Hastings
6b - Roebuck House, 2627 High Street, Hastings
5a - 1A Park Wood Road,
Hastings
5a - 1A Park Wood Road,
Hastings
6b - Roebuck House, 2627 High Street, Hastings

Interest
Personal – East Sussex
County Councillor
Personal – East Sussex
County Councillor
Personal – East Sussex
County Councillor
Prejudicial - Wrote in
support of application.
Personal - Two of the
petitioners are known to
him
Prejudicial – Application at
his own Doctors surgery
Personal – One of the
petitioners is known to him
Personal - Two of the
petitioners is known to her
Personal – Application at
her Doctors surgery but
she attends their other
practice

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 14 AUGUST 2019

RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting held on 14 August 2019 be
approved by the Chair as a true record.
152.

NOTIFICATION OF ANY ADDITIONAL URGENT ITEMS

PagePC.
11

PLANNING
11 SEPTEMBER 2019
None
153.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS ATTRACTING A PETITION

153.1 1A Park Wood Road, Hastings, TN34 2RN (HS/FA/19/00188)
Proposal

Application No.
Conservation Area
Listed Building
Public Consultation

Removal of existing flat roof and the
construction of a new Mansard roof
extension to provide two bedrooms with
ensuite showers
HS/FA/19/00188
No
No
Yes - 4 letters of objection, 1 petition of
objection, 15 letters of support

Cllr Edwards left the chamber for this item due to his prejudicial interest.
The Principal Planning Officer, Mrs Wood presented the application for removal of
existing flat roof and the construction of a new Mansard roof extension to provide two
bedrooms with ensuite showers.
She commented that there had been no updates on correspondence since the
publishing of the agenda
Councillors were shown plans and photographs of the application site. The Principal
Planning Officer explained that the application was recommended for refusal. She
stated that the application would result in an increase of 2.7m in height to the building.
She said the dwelling would be out of keeping due to its bulk and height which would
have an overbearing effect on its neighbours.
The lead petitioner, Michael Stewart was present and spoke against the application.
He commented that the proposed application is not in keeping with the rest of the road
but more so with the buildings on The Ridge. The increase in height would make it
larger than other buildings in Park Wood Road and would be invasive for people living
in the area. The person living opposite has high trees blocking their view of this
property. 3 of the bedrooms of the proposed property would have facing into his
property and two of those, view directly into his house. If the application is approved it
could set a precedent to other properties in the road to have three floors.
The applicant’s agent, Peter Griffiths was present and spoke in favour of the
application as he had prepared the application on behalf of the owner.
He commented that the existing dwelling was constructed in the early seventies and is
unattractive with poor thermal qualities. The owner had until recently been trading
PC. 2

Page 2

PLANNING
11 SEPTEMBER 2019
from the nearby site but has since retired. The owner is now seriously ill and would
like to upgrade his house thermally and allow his family space to look after him. The
proposed application adds much needed accommodation for the owner. The roof is in
keeping with other local properties. The application height is no larger than other
homes near the site. The side elevation windows that the petitioner is worried about
are for bathrooms and will have obscured glazing. In his opinion the impact will be
minimal as it matches the height of three adjoining properties nearby.
Councillors asked the applicant’s agent if he had considered ground level changes to
minimise the impact of the application. The applicant commented that the only
opportunity at the ground floor is the garage and that is closer to number 1 and would
cause greater issues.
The Principal Planning Officer commented that overlooking was not a significant issue
as set out in the report and the impact of the character of the building on the area is.
Councillors asked if there are any other three storey properties in Park Wood Road.
The Principal Planning Officer confirmed that there are none but there are loft
conversions.
Councillors debated the application.
Councillor Beaver proposed a motion, seconded by Councillor Cox, to refuse the
application for the reasons set out in the resolution below.
RESOLVED – (6 for, 3 against) that Full Planning Permission be refused for the
following reasons:
1. The proposed development by virtue of its design, scale, bulk would result in an
incongruous form of development that would be out of keeping with, and harmful to,
the character of the area. The proposal is therefore considered contrary to Policy DM1
of the Hastings Development Management Plan (2015) and Paragraphs 127 and 130
of the National Planning Policy Framework (2019).
2. The proposed development by virtue of its design, scale and bulk would result in a
development that is overbearing and detrimental to the residential amenities of the
residents at No.1 Park Wood Road. The proposal is therefore considered contrary to
Policy DM3 of the Hastings Development Management Plan (2015) and Paragraph
127 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2019).
Note to the Applicant
1. Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application Hastings
Borough Council has actively sought to work with the applicant in a positive and
proactive manner, in accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.
154.

OTHER PLANNING APPLICATIONS

PC. 3

Page 3

PLANNING
11 SEPTEMBER 2019
154.1 New Visitor Centre, Hastings Country Park, Lower Coastguard Lane,
Fairlight, Hastings, TN35 4AB (HS/FA/19/00499)
Proposal

Application No.
Conservation Area
Listed Building
Public Consultation

Proposed new boundary extended
20m from currently approved
application (App' ref: HS/FA/14/01033)
boundary and proposed new swale.
HS/FA/19/00499
No
No
Yes - 1 letter of objection. Council
application on Council owned land.

The Principal Planning Officer, Mrs Wood presented the application for a proposed
new boundary extended 20m from currently approved application boundary and
proposed new swale.
Councillors were shown plans and photographs of the application site. The Principal
Planning Officer stated that it was not a discussion regarding the acceptability of the
visitor centre but the swale and red line boundary. She explained that the swale was
a method of surface water drainage and was outline the previous red line. She said
that only below ground work has started. The swale would be .7m up from ground
level and would have no visual impact on the AONB..
Councillors discussed the swale and asked why it wasn’t included in the initial
application. The Principal Planning Officer answered that investigating water drainage
was a condition of the initial application.
Councillor Bishop proposed a motion, seconded by Councillor O’Callaghan, that
planning permission be granted as set out in the resolution below.
RESOLVED – (Unanimously) that Full Planning Permission be granted subject
to the following conditions:
1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans:
240/312 K, 240/319 K, 240/327 J, 240/354 A & 240/357.
2. Prior to installation, details of any boundary treatment to be installed along the site
boundary are to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The boundary treatment shall then be installed in accordance with the
approved details.
3. Prior to creation of the swale a statement is to be provided outlining the following;
- The responsibilities of each party for the implementation of the SUDS scheme.
- A timetable for implementation.
PC. 4

Page 4

PLANNING
11 SEPTEMBER 2019
- A management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development.
4. Upon completion of the swale, evidence (including photographs) should be
submitted showing that the drainage system has been constructed as per the final
agreed detailed drainage designs.
Reasons:
1. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
2. To ensure a satisfactory standard of development and in the interests of the
openness of The Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and Local Nature Reserve.
3. To ensure a satisfactory standard of development.
4. To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the character and
amenity of the area.
Notes to the Applicant
1. Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this permission may result in
enforcement action without further warning.
2. Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application Hastings
Borough Council has actively sought to work with the applicant in a positive and
proactive manner, in accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.
154.2 Roebuck House, 26-27 High Street, Hastings, TN34 3EY (HS/FA/19/00157)
Proposal

Application No.
Conservation Area
Listed Building
Public Consultation

Conversion of existing (D1) doctors
surgery to form 9 x flats including
external alterations (materials and
finishes).
HS/FA/19/00157
Yes – Old Town
Grade II
Yes – 11 letters of objection, 1 neutral
comment.

Cllr Beaver left the chamber for this item due to his prejudicial interest.
The Principal Planning Officer, Mrs Wood presented the application for the conversion
of existing (D1) doctors surgery to form 9 x flats including external alterations.
Councillors were shown plans and photographs of the application site.
The Principal Planning Officer commented that there was an additional suggested
condition which had been agreed by the agent: Prior to the commencement of
PC. 5

Page 5

PLANNING
11 SEPTEMBER 2019
development, details of the Hastings and Rother Clinical Commissioning Group
approval for the relocation of the Primary Care Unit to Ice House, Rock-A-Nore Road,
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In order to ensure that the requirements of Policy SA3 of the Hastings
Development Management Plan 2015 are met.
The Principal Planning Officer stated that a Listed Building application for the
application site was under consideration. She said that a lot of work had been done in
changes to the building which had overcome a lot of the original concerns. She said
as it was not considered major development the council was unable to request
financial contributions to the footway.
Councillors asked questions around whether parking at the proposed development
would be satisfactory. The Principal Planning Officer answered that the Highway
Authority has been consulted and are happy with the proposed parking. The change of
use from a doctor’s surgery to residential will result in a reduction in movements in
terms of trips. They were happy with the level of parking due to the sustainable
location..
Councillors asked questions around how to encourage future developers to present
greener applications and whether the concerns of the Hastings Old Town Residents
Association (HOTRA) had been addressed.
The Principal Planning Officer answered that HOTRA’s main concerns were around
the appearance of the building which have now been addressed and the parking
which highways are happy with. Any refurbishment of a building will allow for efficiency
improvements but greener developments are more important for newer builds as older
buildings have more restrictions on what can be done.
Councillor Davies proposed a motion, subject to the addition of Condition 10,
seconded by Councillor Scott, to grant planning permission
RESOLVED – (Unanimously) that Full Planning Permission be granted subject
to the following conditions:
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans:
18.171/01, 18.171/02, 18.171/03C and 18.171/04C.
3. The building works required to carry out the development allowed by this
permission must only be carried out within the following times:08.00 - 18.00 Monday to Friday
08.00 - 13.00 on Saturdays
No working on Sundays or Public Holidays.

PC. 6

Page 6

PLANNING
11 SEPTEMBER 2019
4. 1 x 1100 litre wheeled waste bin and 1 x 1000 litre wheeled recycle bin should be
provided within the designated waste storage room on first occupation of the flats
hereby approved.
5. No part of the development shall be occupied until the car parking spaces have
been provided in accordance with plans and details submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The area shall thereafter be retained for that
use and shall not be used other than for the parking of motor vehicles.
6. No part of the development shall be occupied until covered and secure cycle
parking spaces have been provided in accordance with plans and details submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The area shall thereafter be
retained for that use and shall not be used other than for the parking of cycles.
7. The submitted Construction Management Plan (House Designs, August 2019) shall
be implemented and adhered to in full throughout the entire construction period.
8. Prior to the commencement of painting works, full details shall be provided of the
proposed paint colour to be used for the render surfaces of the building should be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details
shall include a paint colour chart clearly marked up to show the proposed colour, paint
type and manufacturer. The works must then be undertaken in accordance with the
approved details.
9. Prior to the installation of any other extract systems, full details of the proposed
siting of any extract terminals on the visible elevations of the building, or anywhere on
the listed building, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. These details shall include elevations showing the proposed locations of the
vent terminals and details of the size, appearance, materials and finishes of the
terminals. Thereafter, the approved form of extract terminal shall be fitted in the
agreed locations.
10. Prior to the commencement of development, details of the Hastings and Rother
Clinical Commissioning Group approval for the relocation of the Primary Care Unit to
Ice House, Rock-A-Nore Road, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.
Reasons:
1. This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 91 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
3. To safeguard the amenity of nearby residents.
4. To ensure a satisfactory standard of development.
5. To provide car-parking space for the development.
PC. 7

Page 7

PLANNING
11 SEPTEMBER 2019
6. To provide alternative travel options to the use of the car in accordance with current
sustainable transport policies.
7. In the interests of highway safety and the amenities of the area.
8. To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the character and
appearance of the area.
9. To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the character and
appearance of the area.
10. In order to ensure that the requirements of Policy SA3 of the Hastings
Development Management Plan 2015 are met.
Notes to the Applicant
1. Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this permission may result in
enforcement action without further warning.
2. Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application Hastings
Borough Council has actively sought to work with the applicant in a positive and
proactive manner, in accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.
3. A formal application for connection to the public foul sewerage system is required in
order to service this development, please contact Southern Water: Developer
Services, Southern Water, Southern House, Sparrowgrove, Otterbourne, Hampshire,
SO21 2SW. Tel: 0330 303 0119.E-mail: developerservices@southernwater.co.uk.
4. Any changes to the building foundations will require Southern Water approval. An
investigation of the water main is required to ascertain its condition, size and depth.
The design for erection of additional floor and extensions should take into account
additional load of that construction that will be affecting the public apparatus. The
applicant is advised to discuss the matter further with Southern Water, Sparrowgrove
House, Sparrowgrove, Otterbourne, Hampshire SO21 2SW (Tel: 0330 303 0119) or
www.southernwater.co.uk”.
5. Consideration should be given to the provision of a domestic sprinkler system.
6. The waste bins will need to be provided by the developer and owner of the property
upon completion.
7. All works should be undertaken with due regard to Health & Safety guidance notes
HS(G)47 Avoiding Danger from Underground Services. This document is available
from HSE offices.
8. The applicant is reminded that a separate Listed Building Consent application is
required for the proposed works that affect the listed parts of the building, above the
shop at 25 High Street. Conversion works should not commence to any part of the
listed building until this consent has been obtained.
PC. 8

Page 8

PLANNING
11 SEPTEMBER 2019
154.3 Fishermens Museum, Rock-a-Nore Road, Hastings, TN34 3DW
(HS/LB/19/00519)
Proposal
Application No.
Conservation Area
Listed Building
Public Consultation

Fixing of eyelets to the front elevation
to stabilise a hanging sign with
chains. (amended description)
HS/LB/19/00519
YES – Old Town
Grade II
Yes – No objections received. Council
application on Council owned land.

The Principal Planning Officer, Mrs Wood presented the listed building application for
the fixing of eyelets to the front elevation to stabilise a hanging sign with chains.
Councillors were shown plans and photographs of the application site. The Principal
Planning Officer explained that it was a Council application on Council owned land.
She stated that the Conservation Officer was happy with the methods of fixing the sign
to the building.
Councillor Marlow-Eastwood proposed a motion, seconded by Councillor O’Callaghan
to grant the application as set out in the resolution below.
RESOLVED – (Unanimously) that Listed Building consent be granted subject to
the following conditions:
1. The works hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans:
FM/S/2019/01A.
2. The work to which this consent relates shall be begun before the expiration of three
years beginning with the date on which this consent is granted.
3. The new eyelets shall be fixed into the mortar joints between the stones, rather than
into the stones themselves.
4. The new eyelets and chains shall be made from stainless steel and painted black,
unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.
Reasons:
1. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
2. This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 18 of the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.
3. To ensure the character and appearance of a Grade II listed building is preserved.
PC. 9

Page 9

PLANNING
11 SEPTEMBER 2019
4. To ensure the character and appearance of a Grade II listed building is preserved.

Notes to the Applicant
1. Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application Hastings
Borough Council has actively sought to work with the applicant in a positive and
proactive manner, in accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.
2. Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this consent may result in
enforcement action without further warning.
The reason for granting this consent is:
National Planning Policy Framework Section 12 applies. The works proposed will not
harm the designated heritage asset.
155.

PLANNING APPEALS AND DELEGATED DECISIONS

The Principal Planning Officer gave an update on planning appeals and delegated
decisions.
The report was noted by the Committee.
(The Chair declared the meeting closed at 6.56pm)

PC. 10

Page 10

±

Issues

Agenda
Item
5a rights [2019]. OS [100021328]
© Crown Copyright
and database
Issues

8

Violet

1 to 17
Court

4

Iris

RIS
E

3

40

1 to 17

Court

1 to 17

OP

1

81

61

DI
NE

UE
BL

LL
BE

11
7

1
28

CL
OS
E

Playground

CE
LA
N

12

10

EY

4

L
ES
W

57
55

Celandine Drive

6

DRIVE

7

SA
LM
ON

Buttercup

Primrose

SN
O

30

69

Court

WD
R

71

53
49

1

22

17

45

23
18

14

9

35

1

DOU C

0

9 Wesley Salmon Close
St Leonards-on-sea
TN38 0GE

Date: Oct 2019
Scale: 1:1,250

Application No. HS/FA/19/00459

VE
EGRO

10

20

10

30

40
Meters

Change of use from C3 (dwellinghouse) to a mixed use comprising
C3 (dwellinghouse) and A1 (use of utility room for hairdressing).

Assistant Director Housing & Built Environment
Hastings Borough Council,
Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place,
Hastings, East Sussex TN34 3UY
Tel: 01424 451090
email: planning@hastings.gov.uk
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions. You are granted a non-exclusive,
royalty free, revocable licence solely to view the Licensed Data for non-commercial
purposes for the period during which Hastings Borough Council makes it available.
You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available
the Licenced Data to third parties in any form. Third party rights to enforce the
terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

AGENDA ITEM NO: 5 (a)
Report to:

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting:

16 October 2019

Report from:

Assistant Director of Housing and Built Environment

Application Address:

Application No:

9 Wesley Salmon Close, St Leonards-on-sea,
TN38 0GE
Change of use from C3 (dwellinghouse) to a
mixed use comprising C3 (dwellinghouse) and
A1 (use of utility room for hairdressing).
HS/FA/19/00459

Recommendation:

REFUSE

Ward:
Conservation Area:
Listed Building:

WISHING TREE 2018
No
No

Applicant:

Ms Burford per GRF Planning Flat1 30 Collington
Avenue Bexhill on Sea TN39 3NE

Proposal:

Public Consultation
Site Notice:
Press Advertisement:
Letters of Objection:
Petitions of Objection Received:
Letters of Support:
Petitions of Support Received:
Neutral comments received
Application Status:

Yes

No
1
0
4
1
1
Not delegated Petition of support received contrary to officer's
recommendation.

1. Site and Surrounding Area
The site comprises a modern, detached, 3 storey property with a modest front and back
garden. It is located in a residential close with the neighbouring properties in close proximity;
the boundary fence is approximately 1.2 metres from the dwelling house to the northwest
side, there is no property to the southeast side, only a small parking area for residents.
There are 12 dwellinghouses in Wesley Salmon Close, all detached and of similar size. The
close is one of several linked roads accessed via Gillsmans Hill, forming a sizeable
residential estate in the Hollington area of St Leonards.

Page 13

Constraints
SSSI Impact Risk Zone
Archaeological Notification Areas

2. Proposed development
This application is a resubmission of an earlier refusal that was dismissed at appeal,
(HS/FA/18/00684). The revised application is for the change of use of the dwelling house
from Class C3 to mixed use, comprising dwelling house Class C3 and hair dressing salon
A1. The hair salon is now located in the utility room, which is accessed via the orangery,
which was originally being used unlawfully as the salon. The change is now much smaller
and the salon and wash basins are no longer set within the orangery, with only one basin in
the utility room.
Hours of business proposed have been reduced form 21 hours in the previous application to
16, which are as follows:
Monday - 14:30 - 5:30
Wednesday and Friday - 10:00 - 12:00 and 14:00 - 16:00
Thursday 11:00 - 13:00
Saturday 9:30 - 12:30
The application is supported by the following documents:
Planning statement
Medical statement
Work diary entries
Signatures of support for the development
Relevant Planning History
Application No.
Description
Decision

HS/PD/17/00356
Notification for Prior Approval for a single storey orangery
on 16/06/17

Application No.
Description

HS/PR/17/00174
Application for certificate of proposed lawful development for the
proposed orangery to the rear
Certificate Issued on 16/06/17

Decision
Application No.
Description
Decision
Application No.
Description
Decision

HS/FA/18/00684
Change of use from a dwelling house (Class C3) to a mixed use
comprising dwelling house (Class C3) and hairdressing salon (Class
A1).
Refused on 11/10/18
HS/FA/18/00684
Change of use from a dwelling house (Class C3) to a mixed use
comprising dwelling house (Class C3) and hairdressing salon (Class
A1).
Appeal Dismissed on 26/03/19

Page 14

National and Local Policies
Hastings Local Plan – Planning Strategy (2014)
Policy FA1 - Strategic Policy for Western Area
Policy SC1 - Overall Strategy for Managing Change in a Sustainable Way
Hastings Local Plan – Development Management Plan (2015)
Policy LP1 - Considering planning applications
Policy DM1 - Design Principles
Policy DM3 - General Amenity
Policy DM4 - General Access
Other Policies/Guidance
Hastings Planning Strategy 2014
Policy DS2 encourages the provision of live/work units within housing developments.
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Paragraph 11 sets out a general presumption in favour of sustainable development and
states that development proposals which accord with the development plan should be
approved without delay.
Paragraph 12 of the NPPF states that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. Three dimensions of sustainability given in paragraph 8 are to be sought jointly:
economic (by ensuring that sufficient land of the right type is available in the right places and
at the right time to support growth and innovation); social (providing housing, creating high
quality environment with accessible local services); and environmental (contributing to,
protecting and enhancing natural, built and historic environment) whilst paragraph 9 advises
that plans and decisions need to take local circumstances into account, so they respond to
the different opportunities for achieving sustainable development in different areas.
Section 12 of the NPPF sets out the requirement for good design in development. Paragraph
124 states: "The creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the
planning and development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of
sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make
development acceptable to communities."
Paragraph 127 of the NPPF requires that decisions should ensure developments:
· Function well;
· Add to the overall quality of the area for the lifetime of that development;
· Are visually attractive in terms of:
* Layout
* Architecture
* Landscaping
· Are sympathetic to local character/history whilst not preventing change or innovation;
· Maintain a strong sense of place having regard to:
* Building types
* Materials
* Arrangement of streets

Page 15

·
·

Optimise the potential of the site to accommodate an appropriate number and mix of
development;
Create safe places with a high standard of amenity for future and existing users

Paragraph 130 states permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails
to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the
way that it functions.
Paragraph 130 also seeks to ensure that the quality of an approved development is not
materially diminished between permission and completion through changes to the permitted
scheme.

3. Consultations comments
None

4. Representations
A site notice was placed on a lamp post, opposite the site address, allowing for a 21 day
consultation period.
1 Objection has been received, with the following concerns:
·

Impact upon residential area.

·
·

Impact on parking
Increase in traffic

·

Not a commercial area

·

Cars being damaged

A petition of support has been received with 30 signatures.
Supporting the business for the following reasons:
The business does not in anyway cause nuisance, inconvenience or obstruct neighbours
3 letters of support have also been received with similar comments.
One other letter of objection was received but was sent in with no name or address, and as
such has not been considered.

5. Determining Issues
Main issues being considered are the impact upon the character of the residential area.
a) Principle
The site is in a sustainable location and the application is therefore in accordance with policy
LP1 Hastings Local Plan - Development Management (2015) in this respect and acceptable
in principle subject to other local plan policies.
b) Impact on character and appearance of area
The area in question is a small, close residential cul-d-sac, with restricted turning areas. The
material change of the use of the dwelling house to the mixed use with a hair salon can be

Page 16

confirmed by the volume of people calling to the home that the business is creating. The
applicant proposes a salon to be located within the utility room which will operate 5 days a
week, for up to 16 hours a week. An appointment diary has been included with the
application. However, this is for May to October 2018, and for the previous number of hours
worked. Average daily vehicular movement was 8.3, and it is suggested that the new
movement will be around 6.3. This is an already established business, and although the
application makes the declaration of 16 hours a week, it would be difficult to enforce the
number of visits from clientele on the days of business. The working day would include,
Monday - 14:30 - 5:30, Wednesday and Friday - 10:00 - 12:00 and 14:00 - 16:00, Thursday
11:00 - 13:00 and Saturday 9:30 - 12:30. The applicant has stated that no work is
undertaken on Tuesdays or Sundays.
The applicant confirms there are 3 parking spaces for this dwelling, and whilst it may address
parking issues on occasions, this is a large 4/5 family dwelling house and therefore the 3
spaces should remain for the occupiers of that property.
The utility room is small, with only one sink, and access to the utility room can only be gained
via the orangery, which is accessed via either the front entrance or the side gate, leading to
the rear entrance of the orangery, which is what was previously used as the salon main
entrance. Should this permission be granted, the use of the orangery could in time to go
back to a salon without the Council's knowledge. Although we are not suggesting this would
happen, we do have to consider what can be conditioned and enforced to be able to control
such a use within a close residential area, and unfortunately, this site does not allow such
room for a business that may wish to grow.
The fact remains that this is a small residential close, within a larger residential development,
and to allow a business such as an A1 hairdressers, that can expand/change elements to
include other A1 uses, cannot be justified in this area.
Policy DS2 - Employment Growth
Policy DS2 of the Hastings Planning Strategy states that ‘To support the town’s role as a
major employment centre and as the focus for economic regeneration, local economic
growth and diversification will be met through the development of up to 70,000m² of
employment floor space between 2008 and 2028 and will be achieved by:
·

Encouraging the provision of live/work units within housing developments

It can be seen therefore that while the Council does encourage live/work units, this is done in
a planned way as part of the wider scheme, where location and character are properly
assessed and addressed by the scheme. Here the proposal is a one off, therefore it does
not fall into the remit of Policy DS2, which deals with applications for housing developments.
Policy DM1 of the Hastings Development Management Plan 2015 states that 'All proposals
must reach a good standard of design, which includes efficient use of resources, and takes
into account.... protecting and enhancing local character'.
The change of use to a mixed use of dwelling house and hair salon will conflict with this
policy by altering the character of the immediate locality and making a harmful change to the

Page 17

otherwise residential character of the area. Again, this cannot be controlled or monitored by
conditions sufficiently to ensure that no further harm comes to the area in terms of increased
hours or volume.
As explained above, the use and hours would be difficult to monitor and enforce. Conditions
could be added to reduce the hours and limit the use solely for the current occupier, but we
cannot monitor the situation should the use start to expand into the orangery again or
increase in hours. Whilst the council sympathise with the applicant and her medical
condition, this residential area is relatively quiet in nature & therefore not able to
accommodate a business of this kind from home. If the applicant was to run her business
from a room in her home as an office, with no visitors from members of the public, this would
be acceptable, as there is no impact upon the character of the area. If the site was located
on a busy through road, with other commercial uses near by, the impact of such a use would
likely not be noticed.
Having hours on a Saturday, when many of the neighbouring residents and families may be
at home, the addition of members of the public parking, or trying to park, could become
unwelcomed and create an unacceptable level of traffic movement within a small confined
area. Having visited the site on a number of occasions now, it has been difficult to park, turn
and manoeuvre in this cul-d-sac. It is therefore considered that the proposal is contrary to
Policy DM1 of the Hastings Development Management Plan 2015.
c) Impact on Neighbouring Residential Amenities
Whilst the proposed business is considered to materially change the character of the
otherwise residential area, the activity of the use will be carried out inside the property and
therefore in terms of neighbouring amenity, this is not considered to be harmfully affected in
terms of overlooking, outlook or loss of privacy. However, the proposed business does have
the potential to have a detrimental impact upon neighbouring properties in terms of noise and
disturbance arising from both vehicle and pedestrian movements. Residents are likely to
experience problems with parking, vehicle manoeuvre, or unacceptable level of traffic flow
within such a confined area.
d) Examples used as other mixed uses
The agent mentions other changes of use that have been granted planning permission within
residential areas, specifically St Helens Park Road. The site in question is a much bigger
house, with many additional rooms. No extensions were built in order to specifically be used
as a business. In addition to this, the other property referred to by the agent is situated within
a through road, with ample parking on both sides and no restrictions in terms of vehicular
turning or manoeuvre. The site is also on a main bus route and within walking distance to
the town centre. The use in question was for yoga classes 4 times a week, in the
living/dining room of the occupier. As such, the application was, on balance, considered
acceptable.
Having read the Planning Inspectorate's report, I concur that the proposal would lead to an
unacceptable increase in traffic movements and parking that would be out of keeping with
and thereby cause significant harm to the character of the residential nature of the area. This
would be contrary to Policy DM1 of the Hastings Local Plan Development Management Plan
2015, and paragraph 127 of the National Planning Policy Framework, which seeks to,
amongst other things, protect and enhance local character.

Page 18

6. Conclusion
In conclusion the proposed change of use would harmfully impact on the character of the
area by reason of the increase in traffic and visitors to the premises. The change of use from
Class C3 to mixed use Class C3 and A1 would therefore cause harm to the residential area
and be contrary to policy DM1 of the Hastings Development Plan 2015 and paragraph 127 of
the National Planning Policy Framework.

7. Recommendation

Refuse for the following reason:
1.

The proposal would lead to an unacceptable increase in traffic movements
and parking that would be out of keeping with and thereby cause significant
harm to the character of the residential nature of the area. This would be
contrary to Policy DM1 of the Hastings Development Management Plan
2015, and paragraph 127 of the National Planning Policy Framework (the
Framework) which seeks to, amongst other things, protect and enhance
local character.

_____________________________________________________________________

Officer to Contact
Mrs M Botting, Telephone 01424 783252

Background Papers
Application No: HS/FA/19/00459 including all letters and documents

Page 19

This page is intentionally left blank

1 to 16

6

Crabtree House
5

15

1
131
4

5

2

Highlands Mews
9

Hotel

The
1

53

TCB

El Sub Sta

RO

AD

El Sub Sta
8

Little

Mews

LB

Highland
Def ED & Ward Bdy
20

22

18

34.1m

WEST HILL ROAD The Coach House

40.4m

33 to 35

39

49

HE
RY

1 to 7
26
West Hill Court

40

42.3m

Archery

AR
C

6

1

to 9
14 7
12

1

10

Court

1 to

BOSCOBEL ROAD

49.9m

2

34

7

±

Agenda
Item
6a rights [2019]. OS [100021328]
© Crown Copyright
and database

19

29

St Le onards
Parish Ch urch

SM

El Sub Sta

Post

LB

Post

Shingle

Date: Aug 2019
Scale: 1:1,250

Application No. HS/FA/19/00431

63

9.3m

Promen ade

Shelter

25 West Hill Road
St Leonards-on-sea
TN38 0NA

Court

90

74

80

1 to 9
Archie

92

84

1 to 19
ia Co urt
tor
Vic
69

0

10

20

30

40
Meters

Modernise and renovate 2 x 1 bed flats into 2 x 2 bed flats located on
FF and upper GF. Works include upgrading the rear windows,
installation of a larger window at upper GF and a new door within
existing opening with Juliet balcony to the upper GF flat
(part-retrospective) (amended description).

Assistant Director Housing & Built Environment
Hastings Borough Council,
Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place,
Hastings, East Sussex TN34 3UY
Tel: 01424 451090
email: planning@hastings.gov.uk

Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions. You are granted a non-exclusive,
royalty free, revocable licence solely to view the Licensed Data for non-commercial
purposes for the period during which Hastings Borough Council makes it available.
You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available
the Licenced Data to third parties in any form. Third party rights to enforce the
terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

AGENDA ITEM NO: 6 (a)
Report to:

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting:

16 October 2019

Report from:

Assistant Director of Housing and Built Environment

Application Address:

Application No:

25 West Hill Road, St Leonards-on-sea, TN38
0NA
Conversion of upper ground floor and first floor
from house to 2 x 2 bed flats. Replacement rear
elevation windows, enlargement of two upper
ground floor windows and the formation of
Juliet balcony with associated door
(part-retrospective) (amended description).
HS/FA/19/00431

Recommendation:

Grant Full Planning Permission

Ward:
Conservation Area:
Listed Building:

CENTRAL ST LEONARDS 2018
Yes - Grosvenor Gardens
No

Applicant:

Mr Williams per McAlisterGill 18 Barking Road
London E6 3BP

Proposal:

Public Consultation
Site Notice:
Press Advertisement:
Letters of Objection:
Petitions of Objection Received:
Letters of Support:
Petitions of Support Received:
Neutral comments received
Application Status:

Yes

Yes - Conservation Area
10
0
0
0
0
Not delegated - 5 or more letters of objection
received

1. Site and surrounding area
The application site relates to a four storey (including basement) Victorian terraced property,
25 West Hill Road. This building has been converted into four flats at some point without the
benefit of planning permission, this application is only concerned with the two flats over the
upper ground and first floors of the building. This property forms part of a terrace of similar
properties in terms of architectural designPage
and size,
23with a light coloured render with ornate

mouldings, many of which have also been converted into flats. The property is in a prominent
position located on the southern side of West Hill Road which overlooks Hastings and the
seafront, the property features a pathway to the main entrance, with the public footpath and
road immediately abutting the property thereafter. The property is not a listed building but is
located within the Grosvenor Gardens Conservation Area designation. The properties along
this road feature an array of traditional windows and doors and replacements which differ
from what would have been originally fitted. It is also noted a number of properties along this
road also feature Juliet balconies with views out across Hastings and the seafront.
Constraints
Grosvenor Gardens Conservation Area
SSSI Impact Risk Zone
Conservation Area Appraisal Consultation Draft

2. Proposed development
The application is seeking planning permission for the modernisation, conversion and
renovation of the house over the upper ground and first floors of the building from 2 x 1
bedroom flats into 2 x 2 bedroom flats. A number of internal alterations are proposed to
accommodate this proposed conversion and to create an additional bedroom on the upper
ground floor and first floor. No extensions are proposed as part of this application to
accommodate the additional bedrooms. No additional parking is proposed by the applicant.
The proposal also involves a number of external alterations to the rear elevation of the
building at upper ground and first floors which will include; upgrading and replacing the rear
windows from white UPVC casements to white aluminium marine grade finish casements to
match existing, W201, W202, W203 and W204 to the first floor and W101, W102, W103 and
W104 to the upper ground floor. The new replacement windows are to be installed within the
existing openings with the exception of the W101 which will involve the installation of a larger
window at upper ground floor level. The proposal will also involve the replacement and
enlargement of another window within the upper ground floor with a door W103 in a white
aluminium marine grade finish and the provision of a small Juliet balcony. The Juliet balcony
will feature glass balustrade which will measure 1.1m in height. The proposed works are to
the rear elevation only of the property, this elevation is hidden from the views of the
Conservation Area and the seafront as a result of the position and elevation of the property
and the surrounding built form. No other form of development is proposed as part of this
application.
The application initially proposed a large projecting balcony at upper ground floor level, this
was not considered acceptable on the amenity of neighbouring properties in terms of the
impact on privacy, outlook and daylight levels. Following comments made by the Council the
agent/applicant amended the scheme in line with the Councils comment with the removal of
the large balcony which was replaced by a small Juliet balcony, this was considered much
more appropriate within this given setting. Following amended plans and description new site
notices were subsequently put up to inform the public of these changes.
The application is supported by the following documents:
·
·

Heritage statement.
Design and access statement (Dated: July 2019).

Page 24

Relevant planning history
None.
National and local policies
Hastings Local Plan – Planning Strategy 2014
Policy FA2 - Strategic Policy for Central Area
Policy SC1 - Overall Strategy for Managing Change in a Sustainable Way
Policy H2 - Housing Mix
Policy EN1 - Built and Historic Environment
Hastings Local Plan – Development Management Plan 2015
Policy LP1 - Considering planning applications
Policy DM1 - Design Principles
Policy DM3 - General Amenity
Policy HN1 - Development Affecting the Significance and Setting of Designated Heritage
Assets (including Conservation Areas)
Policy HN2 - Changing Doors, Windows and Roofs in Conservation Areas
Policy HC1 - Conversion of Existing Dwellings
Other policies/guidance
Technical Housing Standards - Nationally Described Space Standard (2015)
Supplementary Planning Document 2: Replacement Doors and Windows For Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Paragraph 11 sets out a general presumption in favour of sustainable development and
states that development proposals which accord with the development plan should be
approved without delay.
Paragraph 12 of the NPPF states that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. Three dimensions of sustainability given in paragraph 8 are to be sought jointly:
economic (by ensuring that sufficient land of the right type is available in the right places and
at the right time to support growth and innovation); social (providing housing, creating high
quality environment with accessible local services); and environmental (contributing to,
protecting and enhancing natural, built and historic environment) whilst paragraph 9 advises
that plans and decisions need to take local circumstances into account, so they respond to
the different opportunities for achieving sustainable development in different areas.
Section 12 of the NPPF sets out the requirement for good design in development. Paragraph
124 states: "The creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the
planning and development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of
sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make
development acceptable to communities."
Paragraph 127 of the NPPF requires that decisions should ensure developments:
· Function well;
· Add to the overall quality of the area for the lifetime of that development;
· Are visually attractive in terms of:
* Layout
* Architecture

Page 25

·
·

·
·

* Landscaping
Are sympathetic to local character/history whilst not preventing change or innovation;
Maintain a strong sense of place having regard to:
* Building types
* Materials
* Arrangement of streets
Optimise the potential of the site to accommodate an appropriate number and mix of
development;
Create safe places with a high standard of amenity for future and existing users

Paragraph 130 states permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails
to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the
way that it functions.
Paragraph 130 also seeks to ensure that the quality of an approved development is not
materially diminished between permission and completion through changes to the permitted
scheme.

3. Consultation comments
Conservation Officer - No objection

4. Representations
In respect of this application a site notice and subsequently new site notices were displayed
at the front of the building and adverts were placed in the local paper.
10 letters of objection have been received from 7 properties raising the following concerns:
· Works have already begun without permission.
· Overlooking/loss of privacy.
· Compromise to neighbouring (and lower) amenity space.
· Set a precedent for other people to do similar and thus changing the environment of the
whole conservation area.
· Loss of view.
· Reduced light into the basement flat.
· Lack of parking.
· Noise and disturbance.
The majority of the concerns raised by neighbouring properties are in relation to the
previously proposed larger metal grid balcony, many of the neighbours have raised concerns
that the works have begun without permissions in place. Amended plans have now removed
this large metal grid balcony from the scheme. The Enforcement Team have been notified of
the situation and a case has been set up, the applicant has been advised to cease works
until they have the correct permissions in place. It is noted the application has been
assessed on the amended plans which have been submitted as part of the application
showing a Juliet balcony.

5. Determining issues
The main issues to be considered as part of the application is the loss of one existing
residential unit, the impact on the character and appearance of the conservation area, the

Page 26

neighbouring residential amenities and highway safety and parking.
a) Principle
The site is in a sustainable location and the application is therefore in accordance with policy
LP1 Hastings Local Plan - Development Management (2015) in this respect and acceptable
in principle subject to other local plan policies.
b) Loss of existing residential unit
Policy H2 of the Hastings Planning Strategy (2014) states that planning permission will be
granted for residential development that delivers a balanced mix of housing both within each
site, and across Hastings as a whole. Policy HC1 (conversion of existing dwellings) of the
Hastings Development Management Plan (2015) places an emphasis on increasing the
supply of larger and family sized units.
The application building is divided into four flats, with this application only concerned with the
upper ground floor and first floor of this building. The building has as a matter of fact, been
converted for some years as flats, with two, one bedroom flats on the upper ground and first
floors. Having checked the history of the site, it would appear that the conversion of this
building into flats has not benefited from planning permission. Although, it would appear that
these flats were first registered in 2001 on the Councils systems and 1993 with Council Tax.
As such, the current arrangement has been in existence for more than 10 years, deeming it
lawful. Policy HC1 (conversion of existing dwellings) of the Hastings Development
Management Plan (2015) seeks to retain single family dwellings where possible, subject to
criteria. In this instance, as the conversion took place over 10 years ago, therefore the impact
on the Hastings housing stock of larger family dwellings has already occurred. The
reorganisation of the layout of each unit to allow for two bedrooms within each unit does not
require any extensions, as such the application is considered acceptable in this respect with
a requirement of different housing types to meet local housing needed within Hastings.
c) Impact on character and appearance of conservation area
Policy EN1 of the Hastings Planning Strategy (2014) states development which sustains and
enhances the significance of heritage assets and/or their setting will be encouraged. Policy
DM1 of the Hastings Development Management Plan (2015) establishes all proposals must
reach a good standard of design, which includes efficient use of resources, and takes into
account: protecting and enhancing local character. Furthermore policy HN1 of the Hastings
Development Management Plan (2015) states permission will be given for those schemes
that show a full understanding of the significance of the asset and convincingly demonstrate
how their chosen design sustains and enhances the significance of any heritage assets
affected (including conservation areas).
As established in the Supplementary Planning Document 2: Replacement Doors and
Windows For Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas, most UPVC windows and doors do
not replicate the traditional pattern, scale, proportions and fine detail of these openings. For
this reason, UPVC windows and doors are generally unsuitable on unlisted buildings in
Conservation Areas, with the exception of windows and doors which are hidden from public
view (e.g. rear façades).
The scheme proposes a number of external works to the openings within the rear elevation
of the building on the upper ground and first floors, which will include; replacement windows,
the installation of a larger window within the upper ground floor and the replacement and

Page 27

enlargement of the window with a door to provide a Juliet balcony within the upper ground
floor. The property is positioned on the cliffs on the southern side of West Hill Road with
views out over Hastings and towards the seafront which falls within the Grosvenor Gardens
conservation area designation. Therefore consideration needs to be given to the impact of
the proposal on the setting of the conservation area and the seafront. As stated in policy
HN1 of the Hastings Local Plan - Development Management (2015), this general area
currently enjoys relatively unimpeded long views, which are a key element of the area's
character. It is acknowledged that although the property is situated above the cliffs of West
Hill Road in this particular instance, the mass and form of the buildings along Marina prevent
any views of the rear façade from the surrounding conservation area and the seafront and
thereby the proposed works within the rear elevation will have no impact on existing views
and the character and appearance of this conservation area. This has been reiterated within
the Conservation Officers comments, in which they raise no objections to these rear external
alterations.
In view of the above, the replacement windows and door with Juliet balcony and the
enlargement of one window within the rear elevation will result in minimal difference from the
existing appearance with many properties along this terrace featuring an array of timber and
UPVC openings. The discrete glass balustrade to the Juliet balcony will blend into the
backdrop with many other properties along this road also featuring this arrangement. It is
therefore considered the proposed development will not have a significant impact upon the
character and appearance of the building or the wider Conservation Area, and is therefore in
accordance with the Supplementary Planning Document 2: Replacement Doors and
Windows For Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas and Policies EN1, HN1 and HN2 of
the Hastings Local Plan.
d) Impact on neighbouring residential amenities
Policy DM3 of the Hastings Development Management Plan (2015) states, in order to
achieve a good living standard for future users of proposed development and its neighbours
it should be demonstrated that amenity has been considered and appropriate solutions have
been incorporated into schemes. Permission will be given for development where: the use of
the scale, form, height, mass, and density of any building or buildings, reduces or avoids any
adverse impact on the amenity (privacy, over shadowing, loss of daylight) of neighbouring
properties.
The application initially proposed a large projecting balcony at upper ground floor level, this
was not considered acceptable on the amenity of neighbouring properties in terms of the
impact on privacy, outlook and daylight levels. Following comments made by the Council, the
agent/applicant amended the scheme removing the upper ground floor balcony. This was
replaced by a small Juliet balcony which was considered much more appropriate within this
given setting.
The replacement windows W201, W202, W203 and W204 to the first floor and W102 and
W104 to the upper ground floor are to be installed within the existing openings and
replacement and enlargement of window W101 to the upper ground floor, it is not considered
that these alterations will cause any additional overlooking towards the neighbouring
properties with the openings already in existence.
The replacement and enlargement of window W103 with a door and small Juliet balcony
within the upper ground floor, will be installed within the existing opening with an increased
depth to accommodate the door opening. It is noted the objections which have been received

Page 28

most of which are in relation to the previously proposed larger balcony, with many of the
comments stating that they do not wish to object to the amended scheme of a smaller Juliet
balcony. The Juliet balcony will have views out over the rear gardens of the neighbouring
properties and the rear elevations of the neighbouring properties of Marina situated more
than 40m away, views will be oblique, all of which already exist. Due to the balcony type and
size, the proposed small Juliet balcony will not allow for residents to stand on the balcony at
all. It is further noted that a number of neighbouring properties feature similar arrangements
to the rear, given the difference in elevations there is already a degree of mutual overlooking
between these properties. Taking this all into account it is not considered the Juliet balcony
will increase the level of overlooking which already exists, and will not have an impact on the
outlook and daylight of neighbouring residential amenities due to its scale and nature. This
proposal is therefore considered acceptable in this respect and is in agreement with Policy
DM3 of the Hastings Local Plan - Development Management Plan (2015).
e) Future residential amenity
Policy DM3 (f) of the Hastings Local Plan - Development Management Plan (2015) states
dwellings should be designed to allow residents to live comfortably and conveniently with
sufficient internal space. Having compared the proposed layout of the two, two bedroom flats
against the requirements set out within the Nationally Defined Space Standard (2015)
document, it would appear that the internal space and bedrooms provided will exceed the
minimum required standards within this document and are considered acceptable in
providing occupants with a good standard of living.
Policy DM3 of the Hastings Local plan - Hastings Development Management Plan (2015)
establishes an expectation of 10m length gardens to be provided for family homes. It is noted
that the proposed two, two bedroom flats over the upper ground and first floors will not
benefit from any amenity space. However, this is already the case, with the flats already in
existence. Furthermore, the flats are located within walking distance of the beach and other
outside spaces which could be used by residents.
The application site is located within an established residential area and has existing waste
storage and collection facilities which are to be maintained.
f) Highway safety/parking
The East Sussex County Council Minor Application Guidance (2017) states in paragraph
3.6.1 that 'parking for individual dwellings that don't have a shared access or share parking
car parking should be provided as follows: 1 or two bedroom dwelling: 1 space, 3 or 4
bedroom dwelling: 2 spaces'. The current arrangement with two, one bedroom flats over the
upper ground and first floors requires a total of two parking spaces. Following the
modernisation, conversion and renovation of these two, one bedroom flats into two, two
bedroom flats, the number of parking spaces is to remain the same as existing with two
parking spaces still required. It is acknowledged that no parking provision for this proposal
has been submitted by the applicant. However, given the existing arrangement in that the
number of required parking spaces is to remain the same, with some on street parking
available, the site is in a fairly central and sustainable location within walking distance of
amenities and public transport. It is not considered that this conversion will result in additional
harm to the existing parking situation and the proposal is considered acceptable in this
respect.

Page 29

g) Environmental Impact Assessment
The National Planning Practice guidance (Paragraph: 017 Reference ID: 4-017-20170728)
states that "Projects which are described in the first column of Schedule 2 but which do not
exceed the relevant thresholds, or meet the criteria in the second column of the Schedule, or
are not at least partly in a sensitive area, are not Schedule 2 development."
This development is not within a sensitive area as defined by Regulation 2 (1) of the Town
and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 and does not
exceed the thresholds of schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental
Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017.

6. Conclusion
For the reasons set out above the proposal is considered to be acceptable development and
complies with local and national plan policies. It is therefore recommended that permission is
granted subject to the attached conditions.
These proposals comply with the Development Plan in accordance with Section 38 (6) of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 which states:
"If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be
made under the Planning Acts the determination must be made in accordance with the plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise”.
The Human Rights considerations have been taken into account fully in balancing the
planning issues.

7. Recommendation

Grant Full Planning Permission subject to the following conditions:
1.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.

2.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans:
114.200A, 114.100B, 114.101, 114.102, 114.110, 114.111, 114.201A,
114.202A, 114.210B and 114.211A

3.

With the exception of internal works the building works required to carry out
the development allowed by this permission must only be carried out within
the following times:08.00 - 18.00 Monday to Friday
08.00 - 13.00 on Saturdays
No working on Sundays or Public Holidays.

Page 30

4.

Any replacement windows or doors should have white frames.

Reasons:
1.

This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 91 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2.

For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3.

To safeguard the amenity of adjoining and future residents.

4.

In the interests of the character and amenity of the Grosvenor Gardens
Conservation Area.

Notes to the Applicant
1.

Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this permission may result
in enforcement action without further warning.

2.

Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application Hastings
Borough Council has actively sought to work with the applicant in a positive
and proactive manner, in accordance with paragraph 38 of the National
Planning Policy Framework.

_____________________________________________________________________

Officer to Contact
Mrs L Fletcher, Telephone 01424 783261

Background Papers
Application No: HS/FA/19/00431 including all letters and documents

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

80

70

111

±

104

58

Agenda
Item
6b rights [2019]. OS [100021328]
© Crown Copyright
and database

68.9m

4

75

16

101

77 to 95

97 to 119

El Sub Sta
53
88

1

70.1m

57

57a
58

99

61 61a

70.6m
Pentecostal

51

68

BURRY ROAD

48

34

71.8m
Alexandra
Gospel Hall

72

49

70

47

87

76

91

Church

80

St Leonards

95

9

PH
48

62

to

Co
ur
t

1

NO
AD

24

1a

30

1

Alm
a

RO

8

1

2

El
Sub Sta

1

Mew
s

36

ALM
A VIL
LAS
17

42
82

64.0
m

48

6

Uni
ted St L
uke
Chu
's
rch

52A Burry Road
St Leonards-on-sea
TN37 6QZ

Date: Oct 2019
Scale: 1:1,250

Robin

Application No. HS/FA/19/00357

12

19a

71

MB
E
63

71.3
m

79

1c 1
b

73

SE
DL

ES
CO

64

64
a

3

RT
H

18

19

0

10

20

30

40
Meters

Proposed demolition of existing building (currently used as a Beauty
Salon) and erection of a two storey contemporary dwelling with off
street parking (amended design).

Assistant Director Housing & Built Environment
Hastings Borough Council,
Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place,
Hastings, East Sussex TN34 3UY
Tel: 01424 451090
email: planning@hastings.gov.uk
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions. You are granted a non-exclusive,
royalty free, revocable licence solely to view the Licensed Data for non-commercial
purposes for the period during which Hastings Borough Council makes it available.
You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available
the Licenced Data to third parties in any form. Third party rights to enforce the
terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

Page 33

This page is intentionally left blank

AGENDA ITEM NO: 6 (b)
Report to:

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting:

16 October 2019

Report from:

Assistant Director of Housing and Built Environment

Application Address:

52A Burry Road, St Leonards-on-sea, TN37 6QZ

Proposal:

Application No:

Proposed demolition of existing building
(currently used as a Beauty Salon) and erection
of a two storey contemporary dwelling with off
street parking (amended design).
HS/FA/19/00357

Recommendation:

Grant Full Planning Permission

Ward:
Conservation Area:
Listed Building:

SILVERHILL 2018
No
No

Applicant:

Mr Pocknell per Elevations Design Ltd Junction
House 1 Sedlescombe Road South St Leonards
on Sea, East Sussex. TN38 0TA

Public Consultation
Site Notice:
Press Advertisement:
Letters of Objection:
Petitions of Objection Received:
Letters of Support:
Petitions of Support Received:
Neutral comments received
Application Status:

Yes

No
6
0
0
0
1
Not delegated - 5 or more letters of objection
received

1. Site and surrounding area
The site consists of a detached, single storey commercial unit on the south side of Burry
Road. The unit has a large, open forecourt area at the front for the parking of vehicles. The
existing building is a mixture of architectural styles with a brick, pitched top element and a flat
roof, white clad element extending to the side. The existing unit has had a mixed past being
used as workshop and more recently as a beauty parlour. The unit is currently vacant.

Page 35

The surrounding area is characterised by a mix of semi-detached, terraced and detached
residential properties. The majority of these properties are two storey, with a single bungalow
on the opposite side of the road. The site is in a sustainable location, being in easy access of
the Silverhill shopping area and local primary school.
Constraints
SSSI Impact Risk Zone

2. Proposed development
This application seeks permission for the erection of a two storey, detached dwelling on the
south side of Burry Road. To facilitate the development it is proposed to demolish the
existing single storey premises on site. The proposed dwelling is of a modern design with a
split level roof and windows with vertical emphasis.
Two parking spaces are provided along with a refuse storage area to the rear of the dwelling.

Dimensions:
Width - 8.3 metres
Depth - 5 metes
Eaves Height - 4.9 metres
Maximum ridge Height - 7.7 metres
The application is supported by the following documents:
- Site Waste Management Plan
Relevant planning history
HS/FA/12/00586 Change of use from clock and watch repairs/shop to mixed use as a
clock workshop and place of worship (Retrospective)
Granted
13.09.2012
HS/FA/98/00270 Extension of shop and workshop with new pitched roof
Granted
13.07.1998
National and local policies
Hastings Local Plan – Planning Strategy 2014
Policy FA2 - Strategic Policy for Central Area
Policy SC1 - Overall Strategy for Managing Change in a Sustainable Way
Policy DS1 - New Housing Development
Policy H1 - Housing Density
Policy H2 - Housing Mix
Policy T3 - Sustainable Transport
Hastings Local Plan – Development Management Plan 2015
Policy LP1 - Considering planning applications
Policy DM1 - Design Principles
Policy DM3 - General Amenity
Policy DM4 - General Access
Policy DM5 - Ground Conditions

Page 36

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Paragraph 11 sets out a general presumption in favour of sustainable development and
states that development proposals which accord with the development plan should be
approved without delay.
Paragraph 12 of the NPPF states that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. Three dimensions of sustainability given in paragraph 8 are to be sought jointly:
economic (by ensuring that sufficient land of the right type is available in the right places and
at the right time to support growth and innovation); social (providing housing, creating high
quality environment with accessible local services); and environmental (contributing to,
protecting and enhancing natural, built and historic environment) whilst paragraph 9 advises
that plans and decisions need to take local circumstances into account, so they respond to
the different opportunities for achieving sustainable development in different areas.
Section 12 of the NPPF sets out the requirement for good design in development. Paragraph
124 states: "The creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the
planning and development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of
sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make
development acceptable to communities."
Paragraph 127 of the NPPF requires that decisions should ensure developments:
· Function well;
· Add to the overall quality of the area for the lifetime of that development;
· Are visually attractive in terms of:
* Layout
* Architecture
* Landscaping
· Are sympathetic to local character/history whilst not preventing change or innovation;
· Maintain a strong sense of place having regard to:
* Building types
* Materials
* Arrangement of streets
· Optimise the potential of the site to accommodate an appropriate number and mix of
development;
· Create safe places with a high standard of amenity for future and existing users
Paragraph 130 states permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails
to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the
way that it functions.
Paragraph 130 also seeks to ensure that the quality of an approved development is not
materially diminished between permission and completion through changes to the permitted
scheme.
National Planning Policy Guidance (PPG)
Planning should promote local character (including landscape setting) - Paragraph: 007
Reference ID: 26-007-20140306
Considering layout - Paragraph: 024 Reference ID: 26-024-20140306
Considering form - Paragraph: 025 Reference ID: 26-025-20140306

Page 37

Considering scale - Paragraph: 026 Reference ID: 26-026-20140306
Housing design issues - Paragraph: 040 Reference ID: 26-040-20140306
Other guidance:
Urban design lessons: Housing layout and neighbourhood quality - 2014

3. Consultation comments
Hastings & Rother Disability Forum - No objection received
Borough Refuse and Waste - No objection received
County Highways - No objections, referred to standing advice

4. Representations
In respect of this application a site notice was displayed at the front of the site and in
Sedlescombe Road North. In response to this, 7 letters of objection from 5 different
properties were received. The concerns within these letters include;
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

Lack of reflection of local character
Dwelling appearing overly dominant in the street scene
Objection to roof terrace due to potential over looking - This element of the proposal has
now been removed
Impact on traffic levels in Burry Road
Impact on highway safety in Burry Road
Disruption during development stage
Overshadowing to garden to the rear of the site
Loss of privacy
Lack of parking in the road
Area serves as a turning space for emergency service vehicles
Loss of existing business
A different site should have been considered
Impact on levels of light to the bay window at No.52 Burry Road

One further letter was also received stating that the resident 'neither objected to or supported
the Planning Application'. However, having read the comments, it is considered that this
letter should also be logged as an objection to the scheme, taking the overall number to 8
letters from 6 different properties. The concerns raised have been included in the list above.

5. Determining issues
a) Principle
The site is in a sustainable location and the application is therefore in accordance with policy
LP1 Hastings Local Plan - Development Management (2015) in this respect and acceptable
in principle subject to other local plan policies.

Page 38

b) Layout
The site is L shaped and approximately 144.4m². The proposed dwelling is to be located in
the centre portion of the site, having a smaller footprint than the existing building on site,
albeit slightly repositioned, 0.52 metres closer to the road than the existing building. The
dwelling is to be set back from the highway by 3.1 metres with an area of hard surface and
soft landscaping to the front. A separation distance of 2 metres (elevation to elevation) is
proposed between the application property and No.52 Burry Road and 12.7 metres from the
rear of No.99 Sedlescombe Road North. The upper most part of the roof as proposed will be
lower than the neighbouring properties (0.8 metres lower than No.52 and 1.2 metres lower
than No.99 Sedlescombe Road North).
c) Impact on character and appearance of area
Policy DM1 of the Hastings Development Management Plan states that all proposals must
reach a good standard of design, which includes efficient use of resources, and shows
appreciation of the surrounding neighbourhood's historic context, street patterns, plot layouts
and boundaries, block sizes and scale, height, massing and materials as well as good
performance against nationally recognised best practice guidance on sustainability, urban
design and place-making, architectural quality and distinctiveness.
The Housing and Community Agency (HCA) have a produced guidance titled 'Urban Design
Lesson - Housing Layout and Neighbourhood Quality' published January 2014. The
guidance in section 2, 'Active Frontage' states that 'A street or space is formed by the
buildings that surround it, much like a room is formed by the walls around it. Well-defined
streets and spaces are created by relatively continuous building frontage. Active frontage
made up of front doors and windows (especially to ground floor habitable rooms) create lively
and well-supervised streets. This is a key requirement for creating safe and attractive public
spaces. Keeping gaps between buildings limited and avoiding blank walls and garden fences
which face the street are important considerations. To achieve this, long perimeter blocks,
wide frontage dwellings and bespoke dual-fronted corner dwellings can all contribute to
active frontage.' and notes under the heading Lessons the advice, 'Minimising blank walls
and garden fences: Buildings fronting onto streets and spaces are key to quality of place and
the animation of the public realm'.
As stated above, the surrounding area is predominantly residential with a mix of architectural
styles and property sizes. The proposed dwelling is two storey with a split level, modern roof
design. The new dwelling is shown to be subservient to the immediate neighbouring property
No.52 Burry Road with the eaves and ridge being set down. While the new dwelling has a
wide frontage in comparison to the neighbouring semi-detached and terraced properties, this
is balanced by the vertical emphasis of the windows and the use of vertical cladding. There is
therefore a connection between the proposed design and the architectural features of the
immediate locality.
The proposed dwelling is set back from the highway, following the building line established
by No.99 Sedlescombe Road North. It is acknowledged that the proposed dwelling will sit
slightly forward of No. 52 Burry Road, however this is minimal and due to the existing bay
window projections in these properties, which are not annotated on the plans, will not appear
overly dominant when travelling west along Burry Road.
Taking the above in to account, it is considered that the proposed dwelling, whilst different
from the existing properties in Burry Road in terms of scale and design, compliments the mix
of existing built form and contributes to the variety of architectural styles. It is also considered
that the proposed dwelling relates well to the existing street pattern and would not appear
overly dominant or overbearing within the existing streetscene. The proposal is therefore

Page 39

considered to meet the aims of Policy SC1 and DM1 of the Hastings Development
Management Plan along with the guidance within the Urban Design Lesson, as quoted
above.
d) Future residential amenities
Internal Floor space:
The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has produced Technical
Guidance for Space Standards (TGSS) in order to achieve a good living standard for future
users of proposed development. This document states that the minimum internal floor area
for a two storey, two bedroom unit is 70-79 m². Having calculated the internal floor area for
this unit, it is apparent that at 69.2m². While this falls slightly short of the 70m² stipulated by
the TGSS an appeal decision from the Planning Inspectorate (APP/B1415/W/16/3151453,
APP/B1415/W/16/3151454) for a similar small unit within the Borough should be taken in to
account. The Inspector considered that 'whilst the size of the flat may be slightly below the
national space standard, the layout of the accommodation demonstrates that it provides
adequate living conditions for the occupiers of the dwelling. For these reasons, I conclude
that occupiers of the property enjoy satisfactory living conditions and, as such, the
development complies with Policy DM3 of the DMP that seeks to ensure dwellings provide
comfortable and convenient living accommodation with sufficient space for the residents'.
The individual bedrooms within the unit have also been assessed. Both the single and
double bed space meet the minimum requirements of the above quoted TGSS, with the
single bedroom exceeding the 7.5m² metre requirement.
Taking the above in to account, and in light of the comments from the Inspector it is
considered that the slight shortfall of overall floor space is acceptable in this instance with the
unit providing acceptable living conditions for future residents. It is also considered that the
proposal will aid in delivering the Council's five year supply of housing land in accordance
with the National Planning Policy Framework.
External Amenity Space:
Point (g) of Policy DM3 of the Hastings DM Plan states that appropriate levels of private
external space are included, especially for larger homes designed for family use (dwellings
with two or more bedrooms). In respect of proposed family dwellings the Council would
expect to see the provision of private garden space (normally at the rear), of at least 10
metres in length.
To the rear of the property it is proposed to provide a small garden area 6.7 metres in length
and 6 metres in width. While this is falls short of the 10 metre requirement of the above
quoted policy, a smaller garden in a built up area is not an uncommon feature. Several
examples of smaller gardens exist in Burry Road, with the properties at 41-46 Burry Road
and No.99 Sedlescombe Road North all having gardens smaller than 10 metres in depth. As
a result of this established pattern and the compact nature of the existing built form, it is
considered that the garden area proposed is acceptable in this instance.
e) Impact on neighbouring residential amenities
Policy DM3 of the Hastings Development Management Plan states that in order to achieve a
good living standard for future users of proposed development and its neighbours it should
be demonstrated that amenity has been considered and appropriate solutions have been
incorporated into schemes. This includes the use of the scale, form, height, mass, and
density of any building or buildings, to reduce or avoid any adverse impact on the amenity
(privacy, over shadowing, loss of daylight) of neighbouring properties.

Page 40

As identified above several concerns have been raised by local residents in relation to the
potential impact of the development on their amenities. These concerns are addressed
below.
Impact on Privacy:
In the side elevation of the proposed new dwelling facing towards No. 99 Sedlescombe Road
North, there is a total of 4 windows and a door. The door is located at ground floor level and
will be screened, in the majority by the existing boundary treatment. The largest window at
first floor level serves the landing area are to be conditioned as obscure glazed (condition 7).
The three small windows at roof level are to also be obscure glazed and are high level
windows. It is however suggested that a condition (No.7) be imposed requiring that these
windows are fixed shut and remain obscure glazed at all times. With this condition in place, it
is considered there would not be an unacceptable impact on the residents at No.99 in terms
of overlooking or loss of privacy.
No windows are proposed in the side elevation of the dwelling facing towards No.52 Burry
Road and as such there would not be an impact in terms of loss of privacy of overlooking to
this property.
With regards to the gardens of the properties at the rear of the site, it should be
acknowledged that the dwelling has been designed with no window openings in the rear
elevation to ensure no loss of privacy or overlooking. It is however suggested that a further
condition (No.8) be imposed to ensure no openings are created in this elevation.
Taking these factors in to account, it is considered there would not be a detrimental impact
on the amenities of the neighbouring residents in terms of loss of privacy or overlooking.
Impact on Natural Light:
Concerns have also been raised by local residents in terms of loss of light to neighbouring
gardens. When compared to the existing situation on site, it must be acknowledged that
there will likely be an increase in terms of the level of shadowing to the rear gardens of No.
99 and 97 Sedlescombe Road North, as a result of the development. The level of light
received into neighbouring properties is not considered to be harmfully affected noting that
No.52 has no side windows and all other neighbouring dwellings are sufficiently removed to
ensure there would be no detrimental harm.
In terms of shadowing, again, No.52 has no side windows and shadow cast is likely to be late
afternoon, early evening principally to the front of No.52. No.99 Sedlescombe Road North will
experience a shadow cast of varying extents in the early morning until approximately midday.
The degree of that shadow will not extend over more than 50% of the garden of No.99. The
BRE site layout planning for daylight and sunlight: a guide to good practice (BR209) sets out
circumstances where shadow cast could be of harm, that being more than 2 hours over more
than 50% of the garden, that would not be the case here. The garden of No.97 is orientated
in such a manner that it would not be affected by shadowing.
This approach is also supported by paragraph 123(c) Nation Planning Policy Framework
which states that, 'Local planning authorities should refuse applications which they consider
fail to make efficient use of land, taking into account the policies in this Framework. In this
context, when considering applications for housing, authorities should take a flexible
approach in applying policies or guidance relating to daylight and sunlight, where they would
otherwise inhibit making efficient use of a site'.

Page 41

With regards to the potential impact on the development on the front bay window at No.52,
due to the separation distance and the orientation of the new dwelling, it is considered that
there would not be a detrimental impact on the existing levels of light to the existing bay
window.
Outlook:
The majority of properties are sufficiently removed or orientated in such a fashion so that
their outlook is not harmfully affected by the proposed new dwelling. It is acknowledged that
part of the proposed two storey house sits immediately adjacent to the mutual boundary of
No.97 Sedlescombe Road North. Whilst this is not ideal, the extent of garden affected is 3.3
metres and is located at the bottom of their garden. Therefore, it is not considered that this
relationship is unacceptably harmful.
Overall Impact on Neighbouring Amenity:
Taking the above factors in to account, it is considered that the development as proposed, by
virtue of the design and scale is acceptable and would not have an unacceptable impact on
amenities of the neighbouring residents. The development is therefore considered to be in
accordance with the aims of Policy DM3 of the Hastings Development Management Plan
2015.
f) Highway safety/parking
Access, Layout and Parking Provision:
Presently at the front of the site is a large area of dropped kerb allowing access on the
forecourt area associated with the existing unit. A white line is also present across the full
width of the site. A 5 metre portion of the existing access is to be retained with 7 metre long
wall being erected along the remaining front boundary. This wall is to be 1.4 metres in height
with three, 1.8 metre height piers. The width of the access to be retained exceeds the
minimum 2.75m required by the Highways Authority.
The East Sussex County Council Highways guidance for minor applications (2017) requires
that, for a development of this scale, a total of two parking spaces are required. Two spaces
are to be provided on site, one at the front of the dwelling and one to the side.
The guidance from ESCC states that a parking spaces should be a minimum of 5 metres in
length and 3.1 metres in width. These parking spaces are considered acceptable to meet the
requirements of the of the parking standards and as such are considered acceptable.
Several concerns have been raised by local residents in relation to the potential impact on
existing levels of parking in Burry Road. Off-street parking is to be provided as part of the
development and as such it is considered there would not be a detrimental impact of the
existing levels of parking available for residents. With regards to potential disruption to
residents during construction phase, a condition is to be imposed (No.5) requiring a
Construction Management Plan be submitted and approved prior to commencement of
development, to ensure minimal disruption to the residents in Burry Road.
Access for Emergency Vehicles:
In accordance with building regulation requirement B5 (2000) as indicated within Manual for
Streets, there should be a vehicle access for pump appliances within 45m of every dwelling
and a fire service vehicle (FSV) should not have to reverse more than 20m. The proposed
dwelling is approximately 3.1 metres from the highway and as such is considered to comply
with the requirements of Manual for streets, providing acceptable access for emergency

Page 42

service vehicles.
A resident has stated that the existing forecourt area is used by emergency service vehicles
to turn around. While this is acknowledged, this is not a material planning consideration and
cannot be formally considered. Moreover, emergency service vehicles cannot rely on private
land to safely access and leave an area.
Cycle Parking:
No details have been provided in relation to the storage of cycles within the site, however,
there is ample space within the rear garden with direct access to the highways at the front.
As a result of this, it is considered that a cycles store could easily be accommodated within
the rear garden. A condition (No.10) is to be imposed to ensure a storage unit is provided on
site.
g) Waste and Refuse
As part of the development it is proposed to provide an area for the storage of waste and
recycling within the rear garden. This is considered acceptable, with residents being required
to relocate their bins to the highway on the relevant collection day.
h) Drainage
Foul Sewerage:
Within the application form it states that it is proposed to connect the new dwelling to the
existing mains sewer. Having reviewed drainage mapping for the site it is apparent that a
sewer intersects the site. The agent is aware of this and is intending to request a 'build over'
agreement with Southern Water upon achieving permission for the development. It is
suggested at a condition be imposed (No.4) requiring evidence of this agreement be
submitted prior to commencement of development.
Surface Water:
As part of the development it is proposed to install permeable paving and areas of soft
landscaping. This is considered a positive in comparison to the existing expanse of hard
surface on site and as such is acceptable. The installation of these materials will be secured
by the imposition of a landscaping condition (No.6).

6. Conclusion
Taking the above in to account, it is considered that the proposal complies with the
development plan in accordance with Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004 which states:
"If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be
made under the Planning Acts the determination must be made in accordance with the plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise".
The Human Rights considerations have been taken into account fully in balancing the
planning issues.

Page 43

7. Recommendation
Grant Full Planning Permission subject to the following conditions:
1.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.

2.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans:
19.056/01 B, 19.056/02 C

3.

Prior to commencement of development above ground, full details of the
proposed external materials to be used in the construction of the
development hereby approved are to be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall then be
carried out in accordance with the approved materials.

4.

(i) Prior to commencement of development full details of the proposed
means of foul sewerage and surface water disposal/management, including
evidence of a 'build over' agreement from Southern Water for any necessary
works, are to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.
(ii) Development shall then be carried out in accordance with the details
approved under (i) and no occupation of any of the dwellings hereby
approved shall occur until those works have been completed.
and
(iii) No occupation of any of the dwelling hereby approved shall occur until
evidence (including photographs) have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority to demonstrate that the necessary
drainage infrastructure capacity is now available to adequately service the
development.

5.

Prior to commencement of development, including any ground works or
works of demolition, a Construction Management Plan is to be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
approved Plan shall be implemented and adhered to in full throughout the
entire construction period. The Plan shall provide details as appropriate but
not be restricted to the following matters:
·
·
·
·
·
·

The anticipated number, frequency and types of vehicles used during
construction,
The method of access and egress and routeing of vehicles during
construction,
The parking of vehicles by site operatives and visitors,
The loading and unloading of plant, materials and waste,
The storage of plant and materials used in construction of the
development,
The erection and maintenance of security hoarding,

Page 44

The provision and utilisation of wheel washing facilities and other works
required to mitigate the impact of construction upon the public highway
(including the provision of temporary Traffic Regulation Orders).
6.

Prior to occupation of development hereby approved, full details of the soft
and hard landscape works shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as
approved prior to occupation or within the timescales agreed by the Local
Planning Authority. These details shall include the proposed planting plan;
written specifications, schedules of plants, noting species, plant sizes and
proposed numbers/densities where appropriate together with an
implementation programme, finished levels or contours; means of enclosure;
parking layouts; hard surfacing materials; minor artefacts; proposed and
existing functional services above and below ground (eg drainage, power,
communications cables, pipelines etc. indicating lines, manholes, supports
etc.).

7.

The first and second floor (side) west elevation windows shall be fitted with
obscure glazing and fixed shut prior to occupation and thereafter retained.

8.

All soft and hard landscaping shall be carried out prior to the occupation of
any part of the development, or with the written agreement of the Local
Planning Authority, in the first planting and seeding seasons following the
occupation of any buildings or the completion of the development, whichever
is the sooner. Any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the
completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with
others of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives
written consent to any variation.

9.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the The Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order
revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification), no external
alterations or extensions are to be carried out to the dwelling hereby
approved or any outbuildings erected within the curtilage, without the prior
written approval from the Local Planning Authority.

10.

Notwithstanding the provisions of The Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, (or any Order revoking or
re-enacting that Order with or without modification) no windows or openings
(other than those expressly authorised by this permission) shall be inserted
into the south and west elevation(s) of the dwelling hereby permitted.

11.

Prior to occupation of the dwelling hereby approved the parking spaces
within the site serving the new dwelling are to be provided. These areas are
to be retained and available for the parking of vehicles at all times.

12.

Prior to occupation of the dwelling hereby approved areas for the storage of
bins and cycles are to be provided on site, with evidence being submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These areas are to
then be retained on site for the perpetuity of the development.

Page 45

13.

With the exception of internal works the building works required to carry out
the development allowed by this permission must only be carried out within
the following times:08.00 - 18.00 Monday to Friday
08.00 - 13.00 on Saturdays
No working on Sundays or Public Holidays.

Reasons:
1.

This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 91 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2.

For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3.

To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the
character and amenity of the area.

4.

To ensure a satisfactory development and prevent increased risk of flooding.

5.

In the interests of highway safety and the amenities of the neighbouring
residents.

6.

To ensure a satisfactory standard of development and in the interests of the
visual amenities of the area.

7.

To safeguard the amenity of adjoining and future residents.

8.

To ensure a satisfactory standard of development.

9.

To ensure a satisfactory standard of development and in the interests of the
visual amenities of the area.

10.

To safeguard the amenity of adjoining and future residents.

11.

To ensure a satisfactory development and in the interests of highway safety.

12.

To ensure a satisfactory standard of development.

13.

To safeguard the amenity of adjoining residents.

Notes to the Applicant
1.

Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this permission may result
in enforcement action without further warning.

2.

Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application Hastings
Borough Council has actively sought to work with the applicant in a positive
and proactive manner, in accordance with paragraph 38 of the National
Planning Policy Framework.

Page 46

3.

Consideration should be given to the provision of a domestic sprinkler
system.

4.

The application should contact BT in respect of the telegraph pole at the
front of the site. Any required works must be done at the applicants
expense. Further guidance can be found via the following link;
https://www.openreach.com/network-services/altering-our-network

5.

The applicant is advised to engage with local residents in respect of a
programme of development.

_____________________________________________________________________

Officer to Contact
Mrs E Meppem, Telephone 01424 783288

Background Papers
Application No: HS/FA/19/00357 including all letters and documents

Page 47

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7

Agenda Item:

Report to:

Planning Committee

Date:

16th October 2019

Report from:

Planning Services Manager

Title of report:

PLANNING APPEALS & DELEGATED DECISIONS

Purpose of report:

To inform the Planning Committee of any planning appeals that
have been lodged, of any decisions received from the Planning
Inspectorate and the number of delegated decisions made
between 02/09/2019 to 04/10/2019

Recommendations:

That the report be noted

The following appeals have been received:
Address/
Application
Number
36 Devonshire
Road, Hastings,
TN34 1NF
HS/FA/19/00254

Proposal

Change of use
from C3
(residential) to
C4 (HMO)

PSM’s Rec

Where the
decision was
made

Type of
Appeal

Refuse planning
permission

Delegated

Planning

The following appeals have been allowed:
Address/
Application
Number

Proposal

PSM’s Rec

Where the
decision was
made

Type of
Appeal

26 Ironlatch
Avenue, St
Leonards-onsea, TN38 9JE
HS/FA/19/00085

Proposed roof
extension and
loft conversion
with the inclusion
of front and rear
dormer windows
and roof lights
within the side
elevation.
Garage
conversion.
Replacement
and enlargement

Refuse planning
permission

Delegated

Planning

Page 49

of the front porch
and alterations to
the fenestration
of the property
(amended
description)

The following appeals have been dismissed:
Address/
Application
Number
29 Croft Road,
Hastings, TN34
3HJ
HS/LB/17/00942

Proposal

PSM’s
Rec.

Paint the exterior grey

Type of Delegated Decision
Granted Permission
General PD (Approval)
Part Granted
Raise No Objection
Refused
Withdrawn by Applicant
Total

Refuse
planning
permission

Where the
decision was
made
Delegated

Number of Decisions
67
1
1
1
10
1
81

Background Papers:
Various correspondences with Planning Inspectorate
Report written by
Courtney Dade – Tel: (01424) 783264
Email: planning@hastings.gov.uk

Page 50

Type of
Appeal
Planning

